
AB
SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES

THURSDAY 15 SEPTEMBER 2016
7.00 PM

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification” that has been disclosed to the Monitoring Officer. 
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration.

3. Minutes of Meeting Held on 19 July 2016 3 - 6

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is published 
and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the expiry of 3 
working days after the publication of the decision (not including the date of 
publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is received from any two 
Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Commissions..  If a request for 
call-in of a decision is received, implementation of the decision remains 
suspended for consideration by the relevant Scrutiny Committee or 
Commission.

5. Transformation of Child Health and Wellbeing 7 - 18

6. Proposal to Form a Joint Committee to Scrutinise The Proposed 
Merger of Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
and Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Foundation Trust

19 - 44

7. Forward Plan of Executive  Decisions 45 - 68

8. Work Programme 69 - 76

9. Date of Next Meeting

15 November 2016

Public Document Pack



There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Pippa Turvey on 01733 452460 as soon as possible.

Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is 
available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recordi
ng.pdf

Committee Members:

Councillors: Cereste (Chairman), Rush (Vice Chairman), Aitken, Ayres, Ferris, Dowson and Lillis

Substitutes: Councillors: Fuller, Sylvester and Barkham

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Pippa Turvey on telephone 01733 
452460 or by email – philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf


AB
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES 

HELD IN THE BOURGES / VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL
ON 19 JULY 2016

Present: Councillors Cereste (Chairman), Rush (Vice-Chairman), Aitken, 
Ayres, Ferris, Dowson, and Lillis

Also present Stephen Graves

Lance McCarthy

Caroline Walker

Jane Pigg

Chief Executive, Peterborough and 
Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust
Chief Executive, Hinchingbrooke Health 
Care NHS Trust
Deputy Chief Executive, Peterborough 
and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust
Company Secretary, Peterborough and 
Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust

Officers Present: Dr Liz Robin
Philippa Turvey

Director of Public Health
Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies 

No apologies were received.  

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 

There were no declarations of interest or whipping declarations.

3. Minutes of Meetings Held on 15 March 2016 

The minutes of the meetings held on 13 January 2016 were approved as an accurate record.

4. Call-in of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

There were no requests for Call-in to consider.

5. Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Public Engagement on 
Proposed Merger with Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust

The report was introduced by the Chief Executive of Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust (PSHFT). The report provided an update on the work being undertaken 
regarding the proposed merger of the PSHGT and the Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust 
(HHCT), particularly in relation to the engagement of staff and members of the public.

The Chief Executive of PSHFT and the Chief Executive of HHCT responded to comments and 
questions raised by Members. A summary of responses included:

 Following presentation of the proposals at Cambridgeshire County Councils, questions 
were raised surrounding potential redundancies and the requirement of staff to travel. 
It was advised that while some staff would be required to travel, this would be mainly 
senior staff, a number of which already moved between several sites;

3



 Similar questions were raised by Huntingdonshire District Council, along with concerns 
regarding what services would remain at Hinchingbrooke. It was confirmed that urgent 
care and paediatric care would be maintained at this site;

 It was acknowledged that maintaining a sufficient work life balance for employees was 
important, in spite of financial pressures. It was believed that recruitment would be 
improved with the wider teams made possible through the merger;

 The Commission were assured that it was believed both services would clinically and 
financially sustainable. Aspects of the financing proposed were dependant on treasury 
approval. It was not anticipated that this would present any issue, as no additional 
money was sought, simply a different route of income subsidy;

 Normal human resources rules would apply in relation to the appointment of the new 
Chief Executive of the merged body;

 A structure would be determined for the merged ‘back office’ staff. Appointments were 
currently on hold, so as to avoid a redundancies. It was expected that the new structure 
would comprise the bulk of the current substantive staff, as opposed to agency staff;

 The new Board would include representatives from three constituencies as well as staff 
governors from each site, and relevant stakeholder representatives;

 The proposed model was focused on clinical services in order to ensure that patients 
had the best possible clinical outcome. For example, it was advised that some services 
for which Hinchingbrooke patients would have needed to attend Addenbrooke’s 
Hospital, would now be provided at Peterborough;

 It was acknowledged that the potential for culture clashes would be a challenge for new 
management teams, however a series of work steams had been proposed around this 
issue in preparation. Lessons had been learnt in regard to this from previous mergers;

 It was noted that a page seemed to be missing from the Outline Business Care. This 
would be looked into, however it was not believed that any significant information had 
been omitted;

 In relation to concerns surrounding the orthopaedic services at Hinchingbrooke, it was 
advised that demand for this particular service was low. In light of this, and the 
upcoming retirement of the sole service employee, work was being undertaken with 
Addenbrooke’s for them to take over the service provision;

 Any changes in service delivery would be consulted upon; and
 Following presentation of the proposals Cambridgeshire County Council the potential 

for a joint committee between Cambridgeshire CC and Peterborough CC was 
discussed as a possibility.

The Chairman adjourned the meeting for 25 minutes, following a fire alarm.

In response to a question from a member of the public the Chief Executive of HHCT 
acknowledged that the timeline set out for the merger was shorter than previous mergers of 
London hospitals. It was considered that each merger was different, with different starting 
points and different levels of complexity. Furthermore, it was not expected that all the identified 
savings would be realised by April 2016. Tt was anticipated that it would be an 15 to 20 months 
before these were made. 

ACTION AGREED

The Commission noted the content of the report on how the Trust would engage with members 
of the public, patients, and stuff on the proposal to merge the Peterborough and Stamford 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust with the Hinchingbrooke Health Care Trust.

6. Public Health Priorities in Peterborough

The report was introduced by the Director of Public Health. The Commission were requested 
to review the public health priorities in Peterborough to establish which should be scrutinised. 

4



It was also requested that the Commission comment on the Health and Wellbeing Board 
Strategy prior to its presentation to the Health and Wellbeing Board on 21 July 2016. 

The Director of Public Health responded to comments and questions raised by Members. A 
summary of responses included:

 The Strategic Delivery Board had formulated a number of standards to assist in 
assessing success;

 The Council was in the process of establishing a Communities Board which would be 
able to take a focused look at the matter of health inequalities. Work was already 
underway within communities to try to address this;

 The Communities Board would allow for a more cohesive examination of the route 
issues surrounding public health, including environment and housing;

 It was considered that the selective licensing scheme was a very positive step towards 
public health intervention;

 It was noted that page 16 of Director of Public Health’s Annual Report 2016 should 
read “lowest in rural areas to the west of the City.”;

 A number of initiatives were in place to address the problem of child obesity, including 
Healthy Peterborough, and the Food in Schools Programme. An improvement in the 
measured rates had been recognised;

 It was noted that child obesity was a national problem and that Peterborough’s trend 
was slightly better that national figures;

 A link had been recognised between health figures and the level of take away 
establishments in an area. Cambridgeshire had undertaken a voluntary ‘healthier 
options’ programme in relation to food outlets, which may be worth considering;

 The matter of dementia was recognised in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and a 
proposal was in place to review the Council’s Dementia Strategy. Comment was made 
on the work communities could do in that respect with ‘age friendly communities’;

 In response to concerns raised regarding contacting health services the concept of the 
single front door was discussed, which would assist in ensuring the public were seen 
by the appropriate service;

The Commission further discussed the importance of physical education for children in 
schools. In addition, it was noted that the provision of targeted services for the elderly was 
considered vital, both in terms of outreach services and physical activity. 

ACTION AGREED

The Commission:

1) Reviewed the key public health issues outline in the report and identified the following 
priorities for ongoing scrutiny during the year:
 Dementia, including prevention via mental and physical stimulation;
 Coronary heart disease;
 Loneliness and isolation, particularly in the elderly;
 Obesity; 
 Health inequality; and

2) Endorsed the draft Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2016/19) for presentation to the 
Health and Wellbeing Board, subject to the comments made above.

7. Review of 2015/2016 and Work Programme for 2016/2017

Members considered the work of the Commission in 2015/16 and the Work Programme for 
2015/16, and discussed possible items for inclusion.

ACTION AGREED

5



To confirm the work programme for 2015/16 and the Senior Democratic Services Officer to 
include any additional items as requested during the meeting.

8. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

The Commission received the latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions, 
containing Executive Decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or 
individual Cabinet Members would make during the course of the following four months.  
Members were invited to comment on the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions and, where 
appropriate, identify any relevant areas for inclusion in the Commission’s work programme.

ACTION AGREED

The Commission noted the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

9. Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Commission was scheduled for 20 September 2016. 

It was noted that this date was inconvenient for a number of Members, and an alternative date 
proposal would be investigated.

The meeting began at 7.00pm and finished at 9:16pm. CHAIRMAN

6



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 5

15 SEPTEMBER 2016 Public Report

Report of the Corporate Director for People and Communities

Contact 
Officer

Lee Miller – Head of Transformation and Commissioning 
(Children and Maternity), Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
Clinical Commissioning Group

Tel. 07538276106

TRANSFORMATION OF CHILD HEALTH AND WELLBEING

1. PURPOSE

1.1 The report is being presented to provide an update on the proposal of joint commissioning of 
integrated children’s health services.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 For the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues to discuss and endorse the proposal to bring 
together the Joint Commissioning Unit and the Sustainability and Transformation Programme.

3. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND RELEVANT CABINET PORTFOLIO

3.1 This report is linked to the corporate priority of ‘Achieve the best health and wellbeing for the 
city’ by proposing to integrate health and wellbeing services for children and young people.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 In order to drive best value in commissioning more coherent and integrated child and young 
person health and wellbeing services, Cambridgeshire County Council, (CCC) Peterborough 
City Council (PCC) and the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) established the Joint Commissioning Unit (JCU) in April 2015. 

4.2 The JCU is the strategic lead for the commissioning of 0 to 19 child and young person health 
and wellbeing (community and mental health element) services in Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough.

5. KEY ISSUES

5.1 As well as undertaking the business as usual commissioning work the JCU has been 
developing a transformational programme that would see the bringing together of all 
commissioned and delivered services around children and young people services 0 – 19, 
(community and mental health) this could take the form of one lead provider. 

5.2 Also the JCU has been developing the iThrive framework of service delivery, this involves a 
cultural shift in providers of services – a more holistic person centered approach that would 
replace the tiered model of delivery common in mental health services particularly.
 

5.3 At the same time the CCG has been leading the development of a system wide Sustainability 
and Transformation Programme (STP) a 5 year plan. The Children’s work stream of the STP 
has focused on developing a plan for acute children’s services.  

5.4 The JCU’s transformation programme aims to rationalise 15 contracts and 42 service 
specifications into an innovative model of care that reduces inequality and offers a high quality 

7



integrated health and social care service to children, young people and families in 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough. The principles behind this approach: 

 High quality service user and patient experiences;

 Optimum outcomes for children, young people and their families in Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough;

 Truly integrated services and care; and

 And investing in prevention and moving care into lower cost settings. 

5.5 The STP transformation programme is underpinned by the following principles: 

 Child and family focused:  We will ensure the voices and experiences of children, 
young people and families are heard throughout the health care system and their needs 
drive planning and delivery in collaboration with clinical expertise;

 Focus on health promotion:  We will prioritise investment and resources to improve 
the health and wellbeing of our children and young people;

 Transformative care:  We will invite children, young people and families to be active 
participants in the review and future design of services;

 Care close to home:  We will offer children, young people and their families services in 
settings where they feel welcome, comfortable, safe and cause as little disruption to 
family life as possible;

 High quality information:  We will share the best information and intelligence between 
professionals and with children, young people and their families to allow the best 
possible healthcare; and

 Evidence based sustainable care:  We will commission and deliver services to 
consistent standards, informed by best practice and available evidence.  All children and 
young people will have equitable access to services to meet their demands.

5.6 There is a drive across Cambridgeshire and Peterborough local authorities to consider 
commissioning and service delivery together with the CCG, recognising the experience and 
expertise which has developed over several years in the 3 organisations, to draw together and 
agree approaches where this will be beneficial or could strengthen service delivery to children, 
families and communities investing in prevention and moving care into lower cost settings.

5.7

5.7.1

5.7.2

5.7.3

5.7.4

5.7.5

There are a number of key local challenges which are impacting on local services with 
implications on the sustainability of provision for children and young people in the 
future.

Increased demand and complexity of need - The number of children in Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough is growing and accompanied by a rising acuity of need. This includes an increase 
in the number of children in care and level of complexity for children with Education, Health and 
Care Plans. Services at all tiers are experiencing high levels of demand.

Budget reductions - Alongside the increasing and changing demands on services, 
Cambridgeshire County Council, Peterborough City Council and CPCCG are also required to 
make savings.

Waiting time for specialist services more than 18 weeks in treatment.

Increased number of emergency assessments in A&E for both mental and physical health

Recent benchmarking work of the Clinical Working Group has indicated a high number of   

8



5.7.6

5.7.7

5.7.8

5.7.9

5.7.10

acute inpatient admissions and outpatient activities per 1,000 under 18s. 

A range of providers and services but lack of interactive access points makes it complicated for 
children and young people to access services.

There are inconsistencies and gaps in the current range of services both in community and in 
acute hospitals leading to inequality of provision in different parts of the CCG.

The local report from HEE indicates that there are workforce gaps leading to recruitment and 
training pressures for clinical staff across the health economy.

There are workforce pressures on the current numbers of paediatrician’s and paediatric nurses 
with further challenges due to insufficient numbers being trained to meet expected demand. 

There are multiple pathways that do not join up and creates duplications.

5.8 The annual value child health and wellbeing contacts is £43 million, not including any of the 3 
acute hospital children provisions across Cambridgeshire and Peterborough.

5.9 When considering Acute care alongside the JCU work, the following key questions are the
focus for any developmental work.

1) What should the model of care look like for children's and young people's services?
2) How can we design pathways that integrate mental health, physical and social care and 

integrated acute, community and primary care for children and young people in 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough in a consistent way?

3) How can we ensure children and young people receive equitable service provision 
across Cambridgeshire and Peterborough?

4) How can we improve primary and community services so that more children and young 
people can be cared for at home and in community settings?

5) How can we deliver high quality, sustainable acute services for children and young 
people?

5.10 If we join up the acute focused STP work with the work of the JCU it opens up the possibilities 
for opportunities / options including:

1) Development of Locality based multi-agency teams potentially delivered through a hub 
model, linked to primary care and based on a local authority footprint, offering a 
framework which could support Acute Paediatric services, being delivered in the 
community;

2) Vertical integration – in essence, joining up services (usually under a lead 
provider/Accountable Care Organisation) which would then have the ability to shift 
resources more easily from acute care providers into community and early intervention 
services;

3) Moving acute activity into the community:

a) Movement of care to community should lead to easier access to services, 
especially for those currently in areas distant from key hospitals, and should 
improve overall outcome inequality;

b) Providing improved access to rapid response paediatric services in primary care 
locally should reduce unnecessary journeys to Accident and Emergency, 
reducing Accident and Emergency attendances and admissions;

c) Regular outpatient clinics in the community should free up outpatient capacity in 
hospitals and reduce Did Not Attend (DNA) rates, as well as providing care closer 
to home;

d) Shifting resources from acute to hospital at home services, prevention and early 
intervention should reduce inequalities;

9



e) GP and nursing capacity is already stretched.  This increased workload for 
primary and community care services could exacerbate capacity issues and 
therefore delay care;

f) Develop plans to use Paediatric resources on the Hinchingbrooke site to greater 
effect. This may include increase in surgical and clinical elective activity (such as 
ENT) currently taking place in other centres. Increasing the use of urgent care 
services from specific geographical areas such as Cambourne, where the 
population and local provision currently use other centres; and

g) Explore the possibility of developing enhanced community nursing and primary 
care services to deal more effectively with some of the current demand for acute 
hospital services and consider how local authority and health services can be 
delivered in a more integrated way, with the possible use of locality based multi-
agency teams potentially delivered though a hub model.

6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1 The work of these 2 groups has, until now, run in parallel, but given the considerable overlaps 
and interdependencies, it is recommended that we bring the 2 elements together, so that 
children and young person health and wellbeing services can be planned as a system.

6.2 It is the view of those involved that this approach is likely to provide for the most efficient and 
effective service commissioning and delivery.  It is only by releasing funds from more specialist 
services and investing in prevention that we will be able to manage current and future demand.

6.3 Committee are asked to endorse bringing the two groups together under the STP. The Health 
Care Executive and CCG Strategic Clinical and Management Executive Team (SCMET) have 
endorsed the proposed approach discussed in this paper.

7. CONSULTATION

7.1 Engagement has taken place with clinicians, local authority representative and CCG 
management leads. The paper has been endorsed by the Health Care Executive and SCMET 
(CCG).

8. NEXT STEPS

8.1 Work will commence immediately to develop an implementation plan to bring the two work 
streams together.

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1 None.

10. APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix A – Background Report

10



APPENDIX A

Page 1

MEETING: Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues (APPENDIX A)

DATE: 15 SEPTEMBER 2016

TITLE: TRANSFORMATION OF CHILD HEALTH & WELLBEING – 
BACKGROUND REPORT

FROM: LEE MILLER

HEAD OF TRANSFORMATION AND COMMISSIONING (CHILDREN 
& MATERNITY), CAMBRIDGESHIRE & PETERBOROUGH 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP

 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

0 – 19 child health and wellbeing contracts

1. CCG Contract 

Child and Adolescent Mental Health

Chronic Fatigue Syndrome and  & 
Myalgic Encephalomyelitis

Child Development Unit (P’boro)

Children in Care (CIC)

Children’s Continuing Care

Children’s Development Centre

Children’s Dietetics

Children’s Occupational Therapy 
Service

Community Children’s Nursing

Community Nursing

Community Paediatric Audiology

Community Paediatrics (Peterborough 
and Cambridgeshire)

Community Paediatrics, including child 

2. CCC

Children’s Occupational Therapy 
(S75)

Early Support

Family Work/Early Help Service

Family Nurse Partnership

Health visiting

School Nursing

Sexuality Support for Young People

Stars Bereavement

Youth Counselling Services (C33)

Youth Counselling Services (YMCA)

Vision Screening

11



APPENDIX A

Page 2

protection clinics

Holly Ward Inpatients

Looked After Children Health Services, 
including care leavers

Paediatric Outpatients

Paediatric Community Physiotherapy

Paediatric Occupational Therapy 
Peterborough

Paediatric Physiotherapy / MSK

Paediatric SALT – Peterborough

Safeguarding children and young 
people

Speech and language Therapy 
(Children)

Special School Nursing

3. PCC

Community Breastfeeding

Children’s Centres

Connecting Mums

Family Voice/Pinpoint – parenting 
support

Family Nurse Partnership

Health Visiting

Looked After Children Psychology 
Service

Medical Advisor Service to Adoption 
and Fostering Services

School Nursing

Targeted support in education settings

3Ts

Responsibility for commissioning child health, public health services and specialist health is split 
between Local Authorities1, CCG’s and NHS England (who focus on highly specialised inpatient 
specialist services, immunisation and screening, child health information system).  

Specialist Child and Young Person Health Provision

i. Cambridgeshire University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (CUHFT) provides emergency 
and inpatient services and a number of specialist services, with 18,700 attendances for 
13/14 of which 14% were admitted

ii. Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (PSHFT) provides 
emergency, inpatient and Paediatric Assessment Unit (PAU) services for Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough CCG and a significant South Lincolnshire population, with 15,900 
attendances in 13/14 of which 14% were admitted

iii. Hinchingbrooke Healthcare NHS Trust (HHCT) provides emergency services for children 
and young people, with 8,400 attendances in 13/14 and a 15% admission rate.

iv. Cambridgeshire Community Services NHS Trust (CCS) provide inpatient and PAU (CCS) 
services at the Hinchingbrooke Hospital site.

v. Community Children’s health services are provided by Cambridgeshire Community 
Services NHS Trust (CCS) in Cambridgeshire and Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHS 
Foundation Trust (CPFT) in Peterborough.

vi. Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) are provided by CPFT across 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough.

Current local commissioning arrangements are complex, with contracts and budgets 
held with multiple organisations.  NHS England (NHSE), CCGs and the Local 
Authorities all commission significant parts of the system, for example:

12



APPENDIX A

Page 3

i. Acute hospital Paediatric and Maternity Services are commissioned as part of all-age acute 
services contracts by Contract Leads based in Locality Teams within Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough CCG (Cambridge, Huntingdon and Peterborough).  There is limited input 
from Specialist Children/Maternity Commissioners into performance/contract management 
for these services 

ii. Community service contracts are held by locality-based commissioners (Wisbech) with 
input from Children’s Commissioners in performance monitoring.  The Cambridgeshire 
Community Contract also includes Paediatric inpatient provision at the Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital site, which therefore has closer oversight from Children’s Commissioners than 
Cambridge and Peterborough hospitals 

iii. Specialist CAMHS is commissioned as part of a block contract with CPFT for 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough.  The contract is held by the Mental Health 
Commissioning lead (Cambridge).  However, the Joint Commissioning leads for 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough respectively, based in the Local Authority, have recently 
taken on responsibility for performance managing the CAMHS element of the contract.  
This has improved performance reporting.

iv. The issues in relation to specialist services is very similar to described above. There are 
gaps where no services are provided.  For example, there is no autism or Attention Deficit 
Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) diagnostic service for children aged over 12 years old in 
Cambridgeshire.  Children and Young People have no access to Children’s Community 
Nursing in North Fenland.2 

 Overview of Children and Young People’s services by Provider

Provider Summary of Services Age Groups Geographical Area 
Covered

Peterborough 
and Stamford 
Hospitals NHS 
Foundation 
Trust (PSHFT)

 Paediatric Inpatient 
Services

 Paediatric 
Assessment Unit

 Accident and 
Emergency 

 Outpatient and 
Elective Care

0-17 Peterborough, N W 
Cambridgeshire and S 
Lincolnshire

Cambridgeshire 
University 
Hospitals NHS 
Foundation 
Trust (CUHFT)

 Paediatric inpatient 
services

 Accident and 
Emergency 

 Outpatient and 
Elective care

 Specialist Services

0-16 S and E Cambridgeshire, 
W Suffolk, N Herts and 
regionally for specialist 
services

Hinchingbrooke 
Health Care 
NHS Trust 
(HHCT)

 Accident and 
Emergency

 Limited Elective 
Care

0-18 Central Cambridgeshire 
(Huntingdonshire)

Cambridgeshire 
and 
Peterborough 
NHS 
Foundation 

 Community 
Paediatrics 
(Peterborough)

 Speech and 
Language Therapy

0-17 

CAMHS 0-16 

Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough (CAMHS)

Peterborough – 
community children’s 
services

13



APPENDIX A

Page 4

Provider Summary of Services Age Groups Geographical Area 
Covered

Trust (CPFT)  Occupational 
Therapy

 Physiotherapy
 Community Nursing
 Continuing Care
 Child and 

Adolescent Mental 
Health Services 
(CAMHS)

 Special School 
Nursing

 Children Looked 
After Health Service

Cambridgeshire 
Community 
Services NHS 
Trust (CCS)

 Paediatric Inpatient 
Services 
(Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital site)

 Paediatric 
Assessment Unit 
(Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital site)

 Outpatients 
(Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital site)

 Community 
Paediatrics

 Speech and 
Language Therapy

 Occupational 
Therapy

 Physiotherapy
 Community Nursing
 Continuing Care
 Special School 

Nursing
 Children Looked 

After Health Service

0-17 Cambridgeshire 

(excluding Yaxley), 
March, Chatteris, where 
services are provided by 
either CPFT or Queen 
Elizabeth Hospital King’s 
Lynn NHS Foundation 
Trust (QE1 HKL)

IMPACT ASSESSMENT

       JSNA Needs Assessments3 

This shows that some health outcomes for children and young People in Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough are worse than elsewhere in England. The Following extracts highlight the 
main areas of need.  For more detailed demographics please refer to the JSNA. The

14



APPENDIX A

Page 5

following extracts highlight the main areas of need4:

1. A significantly higher proportion of children in Peterborough (21.9%) live in poverty 
compared to Cambridgeshire (12.1%) and England (18.6%).

2. Live birth rates are significantly high in Peterborough and Fenland compared to the 
national average.  Around 1 in 15 births in Cambridgeshire (lower than nationally) and 1 in 
12 in Peterborough (around national average) are of low birth weight.

3. Teenage conceptions are significantly high in Peterborough, but rates have noticeably 
decreased.

4. Hospital admissions for alcohol appear to be on the increase in Peterborough, which 
is against the national trend.

5. Hospital admissions due to self-harm are significantly high in Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough compared to England, and after a notable increase the latest rates suggest 
there has been a slight decline in admissions, but rates remain significantly higher than 
England.

6. At the end of 2014/15 there were 618 children in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
subject to a child protection plan, with rates significantly high in Peterborough compared 
to England.  At the same time there were 876 children looked after across the area, again 
with rates significantly higher in Peterborough than England. 

7. A&E attendances in children aged under 5 years are significantly high in 
Peterborough compared to England, with a notable increasing trend.  Hospital admissions 
for accidental and deliberate injuries in 0-5 year olds is high in Fenland and 
Huntingdonshire compared to England.

8. Over a third of children in Peterborough have one or more decayed, missing or filled 
teeth, significantly higher than England.

9. As at 31 March 2015 there were 4,888 children in need across Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough, with rates significantly high in Peterborough (406.6 per 10,000) and 
significantly low in Cambridgeshire (227.6 per 10,000) compared to England (337.3 per 
10,000).

10. Increases in Emergency assessment in A&E, both mental and physical health, 
11. When compared with a peer group CCGs children from Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 

5 are less likely to be admitted to hospital for an inpatient spell.  Although children from 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough have a similar likelihood of attending A&E than children 
from similar CCGs, they are much more likely to attend A&E for respiratory, gastrointestinal 
and ENT conditions.  The number of hospital admissions for children with asthma at 
Peterborough is significantly above the national average whilst in Cambridgeshire the 
number of admissions is below the national average. (31)

12. Local documents such as the Cambridgeshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
(JSNA6) 7recommend working together across the system to ensure all children get a good 
start in life, supporting good mental health and emotional wellbeing, and preventing the 
negative impact of alcohol and substance misuse, obesity, being overweight and the 
consequent inequalities in outcomes

15



APPENDIX A

Page 6

13. CUHFT’s acute paediatric services are at capacity8 whilst the paediatric inpatient services 
at the Hinchingbrooke Hospital site have relatively low numbers of inpatients9

14. In Cambridgeshire and Peterborough, the 2011 Census estimated that there were 2,170 
children under 16 years of age with long-term health problems which limited them “a lot”10.  
These children are likely to require regular hospital care. The number of children with these 
issues is not evenly distributed across Cambridgeshire and Peterborough. There are higher 
rates around Peterborough, Ramsey, St Neots, Huntingdon, Papworth, March, and 
Cambridge City

Other financial factors are:

15. There has already been much work across the health system to ensure that care for 
patients is provided in the most appropriate setting. However, if demand continues to 
increase at a rate greater than the achievement of system efficiency savings, then the 
overall cost of health and care will continue to rise even though the system overall is 
becoming more efficient. 

16. Impact of changes to General Medical Services (GMS) and Personal Medical Services 
(PMS) funding (local practices are experiencing a reduction in the contract value), 

17.  Impact of phasing out the Minimum Practice Income Guarantee (MPIG). 
18. Current ‘partnership’ model is not financially sustainable across the whole system. 
19. Incentives across the system require realignment to ensure resources are redirected to 

where there any changes in activity patterns. 

GOVERNANCE
CMET, Health Executive, Local Authority Committees. 
Partners recognise the complexities and scale of commissioning a programme of this size 
across two local authorities and multiple NHS organisations. However, this is an opportunity
to take a fresh look at how to improve health and wellbeing outcomes and the experiences
of children and their families through integrated services and pathways.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

The new model of care will improve inequality and  embraces diversity by:

Movement of care to community should lead to easier access to services, especially for
those currently in areas distant from key hospitals. This should improve overall outcome
inequality, providing improved access to rapid response paediatric services in primary care
locally should reduce unnecessary journeys to Accident and Emergency, reducing Accident
and Emergency attendances and admissions.

Regular outpatient clinics in the community should free up outpatient capacity in hospitals
and reduce Did Not Attend (DNA) rates, as well as providing care closer to home 

LEGAL

CCC, PCC and CCG have a number of statutory duties in relation to social care and
health services for children and young people.  Notable programmes that will influence
the way this work is undertaken includes:

16



APPENDIX A

Page 7

 Healthy Child Programme (HCP)
 Health and Wellbeing Outcomes in the Public Health Outcomes Framework11 and Child 

Health Profiles12

 1001 Critical Days Manifesto13 2014
  The Royal College of Paediatric and Child Health (RCPCH)14 

RCPCH ipublished the Facing the Future, which set out revised standards for acute general
paediatric services and Facing the Future Together, which set out revised standards for high 
quality diagnosis and care early in the unscheduled pathway and to reduce unnecessary A&E 
attendances and admissions.
     

 PATIENT EXPERIENCE 

It is intended the New model of integrated service for 0 to 19 years olds is to provide 
seamless patient experiences. 

1. Care is coordinated with the team around the family.  It should include the integration of 
expertise from universal service, GP, local voluntary and independent groups. 

2. There is a clear pathway from GP into early help to specialist and acute based on level 
of needs intervention required.

3. We reduce reliance on acute hospitals and specialist provision, delivering more care 
outside these settings.

4. We deliver high quality, sustainable acute services for children and young people
5. Transitions and Preparing for Adulthood
6. Managing demand
7. Child and Family Focused:

 The voices of children, young people and families are heard throughout the child and 
young person service and their needs drive planning and delivery in collaboration with 
clinical practice and social care. 

 Children and young people and families are active participants in the development and 
delivery of services and are involved in genuine shared decision making.

 The service provided is appropriate to people’s needs, taking into account a service 
user’s condition, disability, maturity, race, culture, religion, sexuality, age, gender and 
communication abilities.

 Continual learning and improvement is demonstrated with service users shaping the 
service and feedback routinely sought and acted on.

 Offers a positive  experience of pathways and transitions
 Listen and involve child and young person offering informed choices 
 Connecting the whole system, streamlining the patient journey and improving the patient 

experience
 All children have equitable access to services to meet their needs.
 Timely access to Children and Young Person services with individuals waiting no longer 

than agreed good practice waiting times. Systems are in place to determine how waiting 
lists are prioritised and to manage peaks in demand.

17



APPENDIX A

Page 8

 Access is integrated to reduce the number of services that families have to come into 
contact with so that families see all the contacts they have with a variety of services as 
being ‘joined up ‘and efficient. In practice this means that no matter which entry point is 
touched, access is coordinated, well-managed and seamless so that users are directed 
straight to the right part of the service. 

 The service is able to work with cases more quickly, more appropriately and more 
effectively to resolve health issues and prevent them from becoming entrenched or 
chronic. 

 Consistent health promotion is offered in terms of information, advice and signposting on 
a range of child and young person health related topics to support good health and well-
being, with regard to agreed Information and support on range of services.

 Services should be delivered as close to home as possible and as early as possible.
 Services for children, young people, parents, carers and families work together effectively 

from the earliest opportunity to deliver the right service to the right person in the right 
place at the right time.

 The service delivers excellent value and generates efficiencies through a range of options 
that include integrated working and economies of scale.

 To ensure robust systems for sharing information, ensuring a seamless service and 
service improvements

 The best information and intelligence is shared between professionals, organisations and 
families to allow the best possible health and social care.

 Professional Delivery in multiagency settings and networks
 Services are delivered to consistent high standards, informed by best practice and 

available evidence.  
 The service recruits, trains and supervises a range of professionals and practitioners to 

provide child and young person health services as appropriate. Clinical practices and 
governance arrangements are in place.

 Ensures the workforce with right skills to meet the needs at all stages of a child/family’s 
journey. 

 Services are client-led, provided within associated agreed codes of professional 
practice related, delivery of services and a quality assurance framework, and are timely, 
effective and inclusive.

 CONCLUSION

 The work of these 2 groups has, until now, run in parallel, but given the considerable overlaps 
and interdependencies, consideration should now be given to bringing the 2 elements 
together so that child and young person health & wellbeing services can be planned as a 
system.

18



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 6

15 SEPTEMBER 2016 Public Report

Report of the Director of Public Health
Pippa Turvey, Senior Governance Officer Tel. 01733 452460Contact 

Officer Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer Tel. 01733 452508

PROPOSAL TO FORM A JOINT COMMITTEE TO SCRUTINISE THE PROPOSED 
MERGER OF PETERBOROUGH AND STAMFORD HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION 
TRUST AND HINCHINGBROOKE HEALTH CARE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

1. PURPOSE

1.1 To consider establishing a joint scrutiny committee between Peterborough City Council and 
Cambridgeshire County Council to scrutinise proposals to merge Peterborough and Stamford 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (PSHFT) with Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust 
(HHCT).

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Commission is asked to:

1) decided whether to support the establishment of a joint scrutiny committee with 
Cambridgeshire County Council to scrutinise proposals for the merger of PSHFT and 
HHCT;

and, if it is decided to support the establishment of such a joint committee, to:

2) decide on the preferred size of the joint committee;
3) appoint members of the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues to serve as members 

and substitutes on the joint committee;
4) authorise the joint committee to respond on behalf of the Scrutiny Commission for 

Health Issues to the public engagement / consultation proposals;
5) consider whether the joint committee would be required to scrutinise the implementation 

and governance arrangements, should the proposed merger be agreed by the two NHS 
Trust Boards; and 

6) comment on the draft terms of reference.

3. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND RELEVANT CABINET PORTFOLIO

3.1 This proposals links in to the Peterborough City Council corporate priority to ‘Achieve the best 
health and wellbeing for the city.’

4. BACKGROUND

4.1

4.2

On 23 May and 24 May 2016 respectively, the Boards of Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS 
Trust (HHCT) and Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (PSHFT) met 
to discuss proposals about collaborative working between the two trusts.

Both trusts face significant sustainability challenges, not only financially but also from a quality 
and clinical perspective. The Outline Business Case (OBC) has determined that closer 

19



4.3

4.4

collaboration will not only support the ongoing provision of services locally at HHCT but will 
improve quality of care and enable significant financial benefits to be achieved through the 
integration of back office functions.

An options appraisal was conducted as part of the OBC which concluded Option 4: to create a 
single organisation, as the preferred option to deliver the most benefits in terms of financial and 
clinical suitability. The Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues met on 19 July to discuss with 
Chief Executives from both PSHFT and HHCT the current proposals about collaborative 
working between the two trusts. Members were informed that both Trust Boards have agreed to 
a Full Business Case (FBC) for the merger of HHCT and PSHFT to be produced and presented 
at the September 2016 board meetings.

This report will discuss the principles behind establishing a Joint Overview and Scrutiny 
committee (OSC) between Peterborough City Council (PCC) Cambridgeshire County Council 
(CCC). The CCC Health Committee considered a similar report at its meeting on 8 September 
2016.

5. KEY ISSUES

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Legislative and Constitutional Basis

Under regulation 30 of the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and 
Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013, two or more local authorities may appoint a discretionary 
joint OSC to carry out all or specified health scrutiny functions, for example in relation to health 
issues that cross local authority boundaries.  The same regulation also requires that a joint 
OSC must be established if a local NHS body consults more than one local authority on any 
proposal for a substantial development of the health service in the local authorities’ area, or for 
a substantial variation in the provision of such a service.

The present HHCT and PSHFT merger proposals do not constitute a substantial development 
or variation of the health service, so the establishment of a joint OSC to examine them would 
be at the discretion of the local authorities involved.  Both PCC’s Scrutiny Commission for 
Health Issues and CCC’s Health Committee would be authorising the joint OSC to respond to 
the proposals on their behalf, and would not make any separate response as an individual 
committee.

The City Council’s Constitution authorises the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues to appoint 
members, from within the membership of the Commission, to any joint health OSC’s with other 
local authorities. In such a case political balance requirements apply to the appointments.

Benefits of Joint Overview and Scrutiny

There is a clear benefit of efficiency in regards to establishing a Joint OSC, both for the local 
authorities involved in scrutinising the NHS and also for the health service organisations under 
scrutiny. In deciding whether to establish a Joint OSC, it is necessary to consider whether it 
would complement rather than duplicate work for all partners. Appendix A sets out a 
recommended test to enable a quick assessment of whether to undertake joint scrutiny activity. 
The test is very simple – if the considered response to the majority of questions in the table is 
“Yes” then some form of joint scrutiny is likely to be appropriate.

At its meeting on 19 July 2016, the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues considered the idea 
to proceed with further joint scrutiny of the proposals in collaboration with Cambridgeshire City 
Council and other local authorities. The Commission did take any decision on the matter, or 
what form such scrutiny would take.

Purpose and Powers

A joint OSC is recommended to scrutinise the proposals of PSFHT and HHCT working 
collaboratively. Alternative approaches could include two OSC’s (Peterborough Scrutiny 

20



5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

Commission for Health Issues and Cambridgeshire Health Committee) each scrutinising the 
matter separately, or holding a shared evidence-gathering session after which each OSC would 
make its own response to the engagement exercise.

The purpose of the joint committee would be to scrutinise the Full Business Case (FBC) for the 
proposed merger of PSHFT and HHCT, recognising that PHSFT would be acquitting 
organisation as an established “Foundation Trust”.

Key areas of focus would include review of and comment on:
 Arrangements and process for effective Public Engagement;
 Joint Clinical Vision; and
 Long Term Financial models for the merger.

When establishing the joint committee, it is also necessary to consider in advance whether the 
joint committee’s remit should be extended beyond the merger decision to scrutinise the 
mobilisation phase, should the merger be agreed.

Membership and Co-option

When PCC and CCC established a joint OSC in 2011, it consisted of five members from each 
of the two authorities, with three substitutes from each. Members are asked to consider what 
number would be appropriate on this occasion. 

In deciding the size of the joint committee, members should note that practical considerations 
mean that political proportionality will have to apply. Only Full Council can waive the 
proportionality requirement and Peterborough’s next meeting is not until 12 October (18 
October for Cambridgeshire), when two weeks of the six-week engagement period will already 
have passed.

The Peterborough membership of the joint OSC would be calculated separately from the 
Cambridgeshire membership. The table below sets out the allocation based on different 
numbers of Peterborough members. 

Total
Number 
of 
Members

Conservative Labour Liberal 
Democrat

Liberal Werrington 
First

UKIP

3 2 1 0 0 0 0
4 2 1 1 0 0 0
5 3 1 1 0 0 0
6 3 2 1 0 0 0

Co-option

If its terms of reference permit, the joint OSC can co-opt other people as non-voting members.  
Given the concerns expressed by Huntingdonshire residents and District Councillors, it has 
been recommended to the CCC Health Committee that provision be made by them for the joint 
OSC to co-opt a member of Huntingdonshire District Council.  Because some of their residents 
are potentially affected by the proposals, consideration should also be given to the co- option of 
a member of Bedford Borough Council and of Lincolnshire County Council.

It may also be appropriate to co-opt representatives of organisations with an interest or 
expertise in the issue being scrutinised. For example, Healthwatch Peterborough and 
Healthwatch Cambridgeshire would potentially be able to provide relevant information on 
concerns expressed by patients.

Supporting the Joint OSC

Informal discussions have been underway in regards to determining the lead authority. It is 

21



5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

proposed that Cambridgeshire County Council would assume this role, perhaps with some 
assistance from Peterborough officers. The lead authority will act as secretary to the 
Committee. This will include:

 Appointing a lead officer to advise and liaise with the Chairman and committee members 
ensure attendance of witnesses, liaise with the consulting NHS body and other agencies, 
and produce reports for submission to the health bodies concerned; 

 Providing administrative support; and
 Organising and minuting meetings.

Establishing Timescales

Both Trusts are working to very tight timescales around the proposals. This has implications for 
potential members of the Joint OSC, as it is envisaged that at least two meetings will be 
needed during the period 12 October to 11 November, including developing a formal response 
to be submitted by the Joint OSC as part of the engagement process. The Joint OSC may also 
want to consider the report that is presented to both the HHCT and PSHFT Boards to ensure it 
captures the recommendations proposed by the Joint OSC.

 FBC to be discussed PSHFT Board 27 September;
 FBC to be discussed at HHCT Board 29 September;
 Public Engagement commences 2 October;
 Public Engagement responses deadline 11 November;
 Final approval of proposals HHCT Board 24 November;
 Final approval of proposals PSHFT Board 29 November; and
 Implementation of merger (subject to approval) 1 April 2017.

The Memorandum of Understanding agreed by the Chief Executives of HHCT and PSHFT is 
attached as Appendix B.  It includes information on time line and work streams.

Powers and Terms of Reference

In summary, a Joint OSC would have authority to:

 Require officers of appropriate local NHS bodies to attend and answer questions;
 Require appropriate local NHS bodies to provide information about the proposals;
 Obtain and consider information and evidence from other sources, such as patient 

groups, members of the public, expert advisers, and order agencies;
 Make a report and recommendations to the appropriate NHS bodies and other bodies 

that it determines; and potentially
 Consider the NHS response to its recommendations.

Draft terms of reference are attached as Appendix C to this report. They are based on the 
terms of reference used for the Cambridgeshire, Norfolk and Suffolk Joint Health Scrutiny 
Committee for Liver Resection Services in 2013, which in turn were based on model terms of 
reference agreed by all the Health OSC’s in the region in 2010.

6. IMPLICATIONS

Resources Implications

6.1

6.2

Officer support and administration in regards to establishing a joint committee. Details are 
outlined in section 5.15.

Equality and Diversity Implications

No significant implications.

22



7. CONSULTATION

7.1 Cambridgeshire County Council are due to consider this proposal at the meeting of its Health 
Committee on 8 September 2016. Further information will be provided on the outcome of this 
meeting via a verbal update.

8. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

8.1 Outline Business case – Merger of Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust and Peterborough 
and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
http://www.hinchingbrooke.nhs.uk/working-with-peterborough-stamford-hospitals/

Step by Step to Joint Scrutiny: A handbook for Scrutineers Ashworth R. and Downe J. (2015)
http://business.cardiff.ac.uk/news/cardiff-business-school-launches-handbook-help-councils-
collaborate-accountability

Local Authority Health Scrutiny (guidance document)
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/advice-to-local-authorities-on-scrutinising-health-
services

Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 
2013
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/218/made

9. APPENDICES

9.1

9.2

9.3

Appendix A – Joint Scrutiny Assessment

Appendix B – Memorandum of Understanding agreed by the Chief Executives of HHCT and 
PSHFT

Appendix C – Draft Terms of Reference

23

http://www.hinchingbrooke.nhs.uk/working-with-peterborough-stamford-hospitals/
http://business.cardiff.ac.uk/news/cardiff-business-school-launches-handbook-help-councils-collaborate-accountability
http://business.cardiff.ac.uk/news/cardiff-business-school-launches-handbook-help-councils-collaborate-accountability
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/advice-to-local-authorities-on-scrutinising-health-services
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/advice-to-local-authorities-on-scrutinising-health-services
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/218/made


This page is intentionally left blank

24



S
te

p
 b

y S
te

p
 to

 Jo
in

t S
cru

tin
y 

 
S

e
ctio

n
 A

: T
h

in
k

in
g
 a

b
o

u
t jo

in
t scru

tin
y 

13

Table 1: Should we work jointly with other councils?

Are citizens in two or more council 

areas likely to be affected by a regional/

partnership policy decision?

Yes/No

Will the regional/partnership policy 

decision have strategic implications for 

two or more councils?

Yes/No

Will joint scrutiny complement (rather 

than duplicate) reviews conducted by 

audit, inspectorate and regulatory bodies?

Yes/No

Will it be cost effective to pool scrutiny 

talent and resource, rather than to 

scrutinise separately?

Yes/No

Does the regional/partnership policy 

resource spend for two or more councils? 

Yes/No

Will joint scrutiny produce ‘added value’ 

for two or more councils?

Yes/No

Will joint scrutiny be timely in terms 

of having maximum impact on decision-

making? 

Yes/No

Will joint working reduce duplication for 

partners and prevent organisations giving 

similar input to two or more local scrutiny 

committees?

Yes/No

Are there adequate resources to conduct 

effective joint scrutiny?

Yes/No

APPENDIX A

25



This page is intentionally left blank

26



APPENDIX B

27



APPENDIX B

28



APPENDIX B

29



APPENDIX B

30



APPENDIX B

31



APPENDIX B

32



APPENDIX B

33



APPENDIX B

34



APPENDIX B

35



APPENDIX B

36



 

 
FBC Timeline for September FBC 

 
Date 

 
FBC chapter 

Paper/chapter 
to Transition 
Board 

- In the merged trust 

- During integration 

Jul-16 
Jul-16 

10 - Governance 
11- Integration plan 

Jul-16 
Aug-16 

Business transaction agreement (process) Jul-16 12 - Transition plan Jul-16 
 

Post project benefits evaluation process 
 

Aug-16 13 - Benefits 
realisation 

 

Aug-16 

Supporting key tasks 
Project governance and resource agreed  Jun-16 
External resource procured  Jul-16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11 1 Page 
 
 

APPENDIX B

37



APPENDIX B

38



APPENDIX C 

1 
 

JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – COLLOBORATION OF HHCT & PSFHT 

 
 DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE  

 

1. 
 
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 

Legislative basis 
 
The National Health Service Act 2006, as amended by the Health and Social 
Care Act 2012 and the Localism Act 2011 sets out the regulation-making powers 
of the Secretary of State in relation to health scrutiny.  The relevant regulations 
are the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 which came into force on 1st April 2013.  
 
Regulation 30 (1) states two or more local authorities may appoint a joint scrutiny 
committee and arrange for relevant health scrutiny functions in relation to any or 
all of those authorities to be exercisable by the joint committee, subject to such 
terms and conditions as the authorities may consider appropriate. 
 
This joint committee has been established on a task and finish basis, by 
Cambridgeshire County Council and Peterborough City Council.  Only this joint 
committee may: 

 make comments on the proposal to the NHS body; 

 require the provision of information about the proposal; 

 require an officer of the NHS body to attend before it to answer questions in 
connection with the proposal. 

 

2.  
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 

Purpose  
 
The purpose of the joint committee is:-  
 
a) to consider the Full Business Case for the proposal of Hinchingbrooke Health 

Care NHS Trust (HHCT) and Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust (PSHFT) for merger of the two trusts to support the future 
delivery of sustainable services for the benefit of patients and taxpayers and 
reduce duplication of corporate and back office costs in relation to: 

  

 the extent to which the proposals are in the interests of the health service 
in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough; 

 the impact of the proposals on patient and carer experience and 
outcomes and on their health and well-being;  

 the quality of the evidence underlying the proposals;  

 the extent to which the proposals are financially sustainable  
 
b) to make a response to the Trusts’ public engagement exercise, taking into 

account the Trust Boards’ intention to decide whether to proceed in the latter 
part of November 2016.   

 
c) to consider and comment on the extent to which patients and the public have 

been involved in the development of the proposals and the extent to which 
their views have been taken into account. 

 
The review will run from October 2016 to April 2017. 
. 

39



APPENDIX C 

2 
 

3. 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
3.3 
 
3.4 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
3.6 
 

Membership/chairing 
 
The joint committee will consist of 5 members representing Cambridgeshire and 
5 members representing Peterborough, as nominated by the respective health 
scrutiny committees. 
 
Each authority may nominate up to 5 substitute members.   
 
The proportionality requirement will apply to the joint committee  
 
The joint committee will elect a Chairman/woman from one authority and a Vice-
Chairman/woman from the other authority at its first meeting. 
 
The joint committee will be asked to agree its Terms of Reference at its first 
meeting.  
 
Each member of the joint committee will have one vote.  
 

4. 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 

Co-option 
 
The joint committee may co-opt representatives of organisations with an interest 
or expertise in the issue being scrutinised as non-voting members, but with all 
other member rights.   
 
Any organisation with a co-opted member will be entitled to nominate a 
substitute member.   

5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
 
 
 
5.6 
 

Supporting the Joint OSC 
 
The lead authority will be Cambridgeshire County Council as decided by 
negotiation with the participating authorities. 
 
The lead authority will appoint a lead officer to advise and liaise with the 
Chairman and joint committee members, ensure attendance of witnesses, liaise 
with the consulting NHS body and other agencies, and produce reports for 
submission to the health bodies concerned.  
 
The lead authority with assistance from Peterborough City Council will provide 
administrative support and the responsibility for organisation and minuting of 
meetings will be shared by the two authorities.  
 
The lead authority’s Constitution will apply in any relevant matter not covered in 
these terms of reference. 
 
Where the joint committee requires advice as to legal or financial matters, the 
participating authorities will agree how this advice is obtained and any significant 
expenditure will be apportioned equally between the two participating authorities. 
Such expenditure would be agreed between the participating authorities before it 
was incurred.  
 
Each authority will bear the staffing costs associated with arranging and hosting 
the meetings of the joint committee held on their premises.  Other costs will be 

40



APPENDIX C 

3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
5.7 
 
 
5.8 

apportioned between the authorities. If the joint committee agrees any action 
which involves significant additional costs, such as obtaining expert advice or 
legal action, the expenditure will be apportioned equally between the two 
participating authorities. Such expenditure would be agreed with the participating 
authorities before it was incurred. 
 
Peterborough City Council will appoint a link officer to liaise with the lead officer 
and provide support to the members of the joint committee.  
 
Meetings shall be held at venues, dates and times agreed between the 
participating authorities 
 

6. 
 
6.1 
 

Powers 
 
In carrying out its function the joint committee may: 

 

 require officers of appropriate local NHS bodies to attend and answer 
questions;  

 require appropriate local NHS bodies to provide information about the 
proposals; 

 obtain and consider information and evidence from other sources, such as 
local Healthwatch organisations, patient groups, members of the public, 
expert advisers, local authorities and other agencies. This could include, for 
example, inviting witnesses to attend a joint committee meeting; inviting 
written evidence; site visits; delegating committee members to attend 
meetings, or meet with interested parties and report back.  

 make a report and recommendations to the appropriate NHS bodies and 
other bodies that it determines, including the local authorities which have 
appointed the joint committee. 

 consider the NHS bodies’ response to its recommendations. 
 

7. 
 
7.1 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
7.3 
 
7.4 
 
7.5 
 
 
7.6 

Public involvement 
 
The joint committee will meet in public, and papers will be available at least 5 
working days in advance of meetings 
 
The participating authorities will arrange for papers relating to the work of the 
joint committee to be published on their websites, or make links to the papers 
published on the lead authority’s website as appropriate.   
 
A press release will be circulated to local media at the start of the process.   
 
Local media will be invited to all meetings.  
 
Patient and voluntary organisations and individuals will be positively encouraged 
to submit evidence and to attend. 
 
Members of the public attending meetings may be invited to speak at the 
discretion of the Chairman. 
 

41



APPENDIX C 

4 
 

 

8. 
 
8.1 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
8.3 
 
8.4 
 

Press strategy 
 
The lead authority will be responsible for issuing press releases on behalf of the 
joint committee and dealing with press enquiries 
 
Press releases made on behalf of the joint committee will be agreed by the 
Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the joint committee. 
 
Press releases will be circulated to the link officers.  
 
These arrangements do not preclude participating local authorities from issuing 
individual statements to the media provided that it is made clear that these are 
not made on behalf of the joint committee. 
 

9. 
 
9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
9.2 
 
9.3. 
 
 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 
 
9.6 
 
 
 

Report and recommendations 
 
The lead authority will prepare a draft report on the deliberations of the joint 
committee, including comments and recommendations agreed by the committee. 
The report will include whether recommendations are based on a majority 
decision of the committee or are unanimous.  The draft report will be submitted 
to the representatives of participating authorities for comment.  
 
The final version of the report will be agreed by the joint committee Chairman.  
 
In reaching its conclusions and recommendations, the joint committee should 
aim to achieve consensus. If consensus cannot be achieved, minority reports 
may be attached as an appendix to the main report.  The minority report/s shall 
be drafted in consultation with the appropriate member(s).  
 
The report will include an explanation of the matter reviewed or scrutinised, a 
summary of the evidence considered, a list of the participants involved in the 
review or scrutiny; and an explanation of any recommendations on the matter 
reviewed or scrutinised. 
 
If the joint committee makes recommendations to the NHS body and the NHS 
body disagrees with these recommendations, such steps will be taken as are 
“reasonably practicable” to try to reach agreement in relation to the subject of the 
recommendation.    
 
If the joint committee does not comment on the proposals, or the comments it 
provides do not include recommendations, the joint committee must inform the 
NHS body of its decision not to comment or make recommendations  
 

10. 
 
10.1 
 
 

Quorum for meetings 
 
The quorum will be a minimum of three members, with at least one from each of 
the two participating authorities.  

 

42



APPENDIX C 

5 
 

Proposed Time Table for the Joint Committee 
 
All dates are subject to confirmation 
 

Date Venue Purpose 

Wednesday 28 September 
@ 5pm 

Cambridgeshire 
County Council, 
Shire Hall, 
Cambridge 
 

 

Preliminary Informal meeting 
 
To discuss evidence that will be required 
to be collated in preparation for the first 
formal meeting.  

Monday 17 October @ 5pm 
pre-meet for 5.30pm  
 
 

Peterborough City 
Council, Town Hall 

First formal meeting 
 
To conduct formal scrutiny of proposals 
around the merger of HHCT with PSHFT. 
 
Chief Executives of both HHCT & PSHFT 
have reserved the 17th October to attend 
this session. 

 

Wednesday 9 November @ 
5pm pre-meet for 5.30pm 

Cambridgeshire 
County Council, 
Shire Hall, 
Cambridge 

Second formal meeting 
 
To formalise a response from the Joint 
Committee to the public engagement 
exercise. 

 

43



This page is intentionally left blank

44



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 7

15 SEPTEMBER 2016 Public Report

Report of the Director of Governance

Report Author – Pippa Turvey, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Contact Details – 01733 452460 or email philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk

FORWARD PLAN OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This is a regular report to the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues outlining the content of the 
Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Commission identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions is attached at Appendix 1. The 
Forward Plan contains those executive decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that 
the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new key decisions to be taken 
after 3 October 2016.

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions provides the Commission with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these executive 
decisions, or to request further information.

3.3 If the Commission wished to examine any of the executive decisions, consideration would need 
to be given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme.

3.4 As the Forward Plan is published fortnightly any version of the Forward Plan published after 
dispatch of this agenda will be tabled at the meeting.

4. CONSULTATION

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions.

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

None.

6. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

45



This page is intentionally left blank

46



PETERBOROUGH CITY 
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 
OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 

PUBLISHED: 2 SEPTEMBER 2016

FORWARD PLAN                                                                                                                                     AB

47



2

PART 1 – FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

PART 1 – KEY DECISIONS
In the period commencing 28 clear days after the date of publication of this Plan, Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set out below 
in Part 1.  Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 and/or have a significant 
impact on two or more wards in Peterborough.

If the decision is to be taken by an individual Cabinet Member, the name of the Cabinet Member is shown against the decision, in addition to details of the Councillor’s portfolio. If 
the decision is to be taken by the Cabinet, this too is shown against the decision and its members are as listed below:
Cllr Holdich (Leader); Cllr Fitzgerald (Deputy Leader); Cllr Elsey; Cllr Goodwin; Cllr Hiller, Cllr Lamb; Cllr Smith; Cllr Seaton and Cllr Walsh.

This Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions for the forthcoming month and it will be updated on a fortnightly basis to reflect new key-decisions.  Each new 
Plan supersedes the previous Plan and items may be carried over into forthcoming Plans.  Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form 
which appears at the back of the Plan and submitted to Gemma George, Democratic Services Manager, Governance Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 
388039). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. For each decision a public report will be 
available from the Governance Team one week before the decision is taken.

PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISION IN PRIVATE
Whilst the majority of the Executive’s business at the Cabinet meetings listed in this Plan will be open to the public and media organisations to attend, there will be some business 
to be considered that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information.  In these circumstances the meeting may be held in private, and on the 
rare occasion this applies, notice will be given within Part 2 of this document, ‘notice of intention to hold meeting in private’. A further formal notice of the intention to hold the 
meeting, or part of it, in private, will also be given 28 clear days in advance of any private meeting in accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed (unless a notice of intention to hold the meeting in private has 
been given).

PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS
For complete transparency relating to the work of the Executive, this Plan also includes an overview of non-key decisions to be taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members, 
these decisions are listed at Part 3 and will be updated on a weekly basis.

You are entitled to view any documents listed on the Plan, or obtain extracts from any documents listed or subsequently submitted to the decision maker prior to the decision 
being made, subject to any restrictions on disclosure. There is no charge for viewing the documents, although charges may be made for photocopying or postage.  Documents 
listed on the notice and relevant documents subsequently being submitted can be requested from Gemma George, Democratic Services Manager, Governance Department, 
Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 388038), e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. 

All decisions will be posted on the Council's website: www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedeisions. If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key decisions' 
outlined in this Plan, please submit them to the Democratic Services Manager using the form attached.  For your information, the contact details for the Council's various service 
departments are incorporated within this Plan.

48

mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedeisions


3

KEY DECISIONS FROM 3 OCTOBER 2016
KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION MAKER DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS /  
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

PREVIOUSLY ADVERTISED DECISIONS
1. Delivery of the 

Council's Capital 
Receipt Programme 
through the Sale of 
Dickens Street Car 
Park - KEY/03JUL/11
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in 
consultation with the 
Solicitor to the Council, 
Corporate Director 
Resources, the 
Corporate Property 
Officer and the Cabinet 
Member Resources, to 
negotiate and conclude 
the sale of Dickens 
Street Car Park. 
For Cabinet to consider 
future options for 
service delivery. 

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member for 
Resources

March 2017 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
Councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate.

Richard Hodgson
Head of Strategic 
Projects
Tel: 01733 384535
richard.hodgson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

49



4

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION MAKER DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS /  
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

2. Print Managed 
Services - 
KEY/13JUN14/01
To enable Council 
officers to be able to 
print, copy and scan.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member for 
Resources

September
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Vicki Palazon
Financial Services 
Manager – Planning 
and Reporting
Tel: 01733 864104
Vicki.palazon@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

3. Real Time 
Passenger 
Information – 
KEY/10JUL15/02
To approve the 
expansion and 
maintenance 
contract.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member for 
Growth, Planning, 
Housing & 
Economic 
Development 

September
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Amy Pickstone
Senior ITS Officer
Tel: 01733 317481
Amy.pickstone@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

4. Delivery of the 
Council’s Capital 
Receipt 
Programme 
through the sale of 
Welland House, 
Dogsthorpe – 
KEY/24JUL15/01
To authorise the 
sale of Welland 
House, Dogsthorpe 
– (non-key)

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member for 
Resources

September
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

David Gray
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384531
david.gray@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

50



5

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION MAKER DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS /  
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

5. Sale of the 
Lindens, Lincoln 
Road – 
KEY/24JUL15/04
To authorise the 
Chief Executive, in 
consultation with the 
Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, 
the Corporate 
Property Officer and 
the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to 
negotiate and 
conclude the sale.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member for 
Resources

October
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Davies
Sales and Acquisitions
Tel: 01733 384547
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

51



6

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION MAKER DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

6. Sale of Bretton 
Court, Bretton 
North – 
KEY/24JUL15/05
To authorise the 
Chief Executive, in 
consultation with the 
Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, 
the Corporate 
Property Officer and 
the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to 
negotiate and 
conclude the sale.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

September
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Davies
Sales and Acquisitions
Tel: 01733 384547
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

7. Draft Housing 
Strategy – 
KEY/21SEPT15/03
For Cabinet to 
approve the Strategy 
for public 
consultation.

Cabinet 7 November 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Anne Keogh
Housing and Strategic 
Planning Manager
Anne.keogh1@peterbo
rough.gov.uk
Tel: 01733 863815

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

52



7

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION MAKER DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

8. Passenger 
Transport Services 
AMEY – 
KEY/27NOV15/01
To approve the 
award of six routes 
to Amey under the 
existing contract 
arrangements. 

Councillor John 
Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, Skills 
and University

September
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Sara Thompson
Team Manager, 
Passenger Transport 
Operations
Tel: 01733 317452
Sara.thompson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an
exempt annexe. By virtue of
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person
(including the authority 
holding
that information).

9. Intelligent 
Transport Systems 
Infrastructure – 
KEY/11DEC15/01
To introduce the use 
of Variable Message 
Signs (VMS) on the 
road network to 
provide real-time 
driver information.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member for 
Growth, Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

September
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Peter Tebb
Network and Traffic 
Manager
Tel: 01733 453519
Peter.tebb@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an
exempt annexe. By virtue of
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person
(including the authority 
holding
that information).

53



8

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION MAKER DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

10. Direct Payment 
Support Service – 
KEY/11DEC15/02
To approve the 
direct payment 
support service.

Councillor Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health

October 
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Redmond
Head of 
Commissioning – Older 
People, Physical 
Disability, Sensory 
Impairment, HIV and 
Carers
Richard.redmond@pet
erborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an
exempt annexe. By virtue of
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person
(including the authority 
holding
that information).

11. Offtake 
Arrangements for 
Power from the 
Energy Recovery 
Facility – 
KEY/25DEC15/01 
To approve putting 
into place 
arrangements for the 
sale of heat and/or 
electricity from the 
Energy Recovery 
Facility.

Councillor Gavin 
Elsey
Cabinet Member for 
Waste and Street 
Scene

September
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Pearn
Waste Partnership 
Manager
Tel: 01733 864739
Richard.pearn@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

54



9

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION MAKER DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

12. Review of 
Emergency 
Stopping Places – 
KEY/25JAN16/02
For Cabinet to 
review existing and 
proposed 
emergency stopping 
places.

Cabinet 16 January 
2017

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Belinda Child
Head of Housing and 
Health Improvement
Tel: 01733 863769
Belinda.child@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

13. Provision of Non 
Social Care 
Temporary Agency 
Workers – 
KEY/25JAN16/04
To approve the 
provision of 
temporary agency 
workers.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member for 
Resources

September
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

James Fordham
Recruitment and 
Retention Officer
Tel: 01733 864581
James.fordham@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

14. Provision of 
Permanency 
Services – 
KEY/21MAR16/01
To approve the 
award of the 
Provision of 
Permanency 
Services contract.

Cabinet 26 
September 
2016

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Lou Williams
Service Director 
Children’s Services and 
Safeguarding
Tel: 01733 864139
Lou.williams@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

55



10

KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS 
/ REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO 
THE DECISION SUBMITTED TO 
THE DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND REASONS 
FOR EXEMPTION

15. Personal Care and 
Support  (Homecare) 
in Peterborough – 
KEY/02MAY16/01
To approve the 
awarding of a contract 
to an external provider 
following a competitive 
tender exercise.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health 

May 2017 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Karen Hodsdon
Senior Category 
Manager
Karen.hodsdon@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there will 
be any documents other than the 
report and relevant appendices to 
be published.

16. Peterborough City 
Council Construction 
Framework – 
KEY/30MAY16/01
Approval of 
Peterborough City 
Council Construction 
Framework

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

September 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Howard
Head of Schools 
Infrastructure
Tel: 01733 863976
Brian.howard@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there will 
be any documents other than the 
report and relevant appendices to 
be published.

The decision will include an exempt 
annexe. By virtue of paragraph 3, 
information relating to the financial 
or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority 
holding that information).

17. Procurement Services 
– KEY/27JUN16/01
To approve updates to 
the Procurement 
Services provided by 
Serco.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

September
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Steven Pilsworth
Service Director 
Financial Services 
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pet
erborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there will 
be any documents other than the 
report and relevant appendices to 
be published.

56



11

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION MAKER DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS /  
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO 
THE DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND REASONS 
FOR EXEMPTION

18. Amendment of 
Existing Loan 
Arrangements to 
Empower – 
KEY/05JUL16/01
To agree the 
amendment to 
existing 
arrangements to 
Empower.

Cabinet 26 
September 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

John Harrison
Corporate Director 
Resources
John.harrison@peterbo
rough.gov.uk
Tel: 01733 452520

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

19. Business Advice 
Charging Policy – 
KEY/25JUL16/01
To approve the 
charging policy.

Councillor Irene 
Walsh
Cabinet Member for 
Communities and 
Environment Capital

September 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Peter Gell
Head of Regulatory 
Services
Tel: 01733 453419
Peter.gell@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

20. Market Position 
Statement – 
KEY/08AUG16/01
To approve the 
market position 
statement. 

Councillor Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Integrated Social 
Care and Health

September 
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Oliver Hayward
Assistant Director of 
People Commissioning 
and Commercial 
Operations
Oliver.hayward@peterb
orough.gov.uk
Tel: 01733 863708

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

21. Local Plan - 
KEY/22AUG16/01
To approve the Plan 
for public 
consultation in 
December 2016.

Cabinet 7 November 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Gemma Wildman
Principal Planner
Tel: 01733 863824
Gemma.wildman@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

57



12

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION MAKER DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS /  
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO 
THE DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND REASONS 
FOR EXEMPTION

22. Integrated Healthy 
Lifestyles Service - 
KEY/05SEPT/01
To award a contract 
for the Integrated 
Healthy Lifestyles 
Service in 
Peterborough.

Councillor Diane 
Lamb
Cabinet Member for 
Public Health

November 
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Julian Base
Head of Health 
Strategy
Tel: 01733 207180
Julian.base@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

Oliver Hayward
Assistant Director: 
People Commissioning 
and Commercial 
Operations
Tel: 01733 863910
Oliver.hayward@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

23. Award of Contract 
for Construction 
and Operation of 
Fengate 
Household 
Recycling Centre – 
KEY/05SEPT16/02
To approve the 
award of contract for 
construction and 
operation of Fengate 
Household 
Recycling Centre.

Councillor Gavin 
Elsey
Cabinet Member for 
Waste and Street 
Scene

February 
2017

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Pearn
Waste Partnership 
Manager
Tel: 01733 864739
Richard.pearn@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business affairs 
of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information).

58



13

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION MAKER DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS /  
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO 
THE DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND REASONS 
FOR EXEMPTION

24. Governance 
Arrangements for 
the Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
- KEY/19SEPT16/01
To approve the 
governance 
arrangements for the 
Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) – IDS 2016.

Cabinet 7 November
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Anne Keogh
Housing and Strategic 
Planning Manager
Tel: 01733 863815
Anne.keogh@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

25. Community 
Supported Living 
Services – 
KEY/19SEPT16/02
To approve the 
award of the 
contract for 
Community 
Supported Living 
Services for adults 
with complex 
learning disabilities. 

Councillor Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health

January 
2017

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Engagement with 
service users, 
family members, 
carers and 
current provider.

Nigel Harvey-Whitten
Head of 
Commissioning (Mental 
Health and Integrated 
Learning Disabilities)
Tel: 01733 452509
Nigel.harvey-
whitten@peterborough.
gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

 

59



14

PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISIONS IN PRIVATE

KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN IN PRIVATE 

KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

1. Potential Energy Joint 
Venture – 
KEY/07MAR16/04
For Cabinet to consider 
and approve a potential 
energy joint venture. 

Cabinet 7 November 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Pearn
Waste Partnership 
Manager
Tel: 01733 864739
Richard.pearn@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

60



15

PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS

NON-KEY DECISIONS 

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

1. Proposal for Loan of 
Senior Management 
Staff Under Joint 
Arrangements – 
To approve a sharing 
agreement for senior 
management staff. 

Councillor 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

September 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Kim Sawyer
Director of Governance
Tel: 01733 452361
Kim.sawyer@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

PREVIOUSLY ADVERTISED DECISIONS
2. Opportunity 

Peterborough 
Business Plan 
2016/17 – 
For Cabinet to endorse 
the Opportunity 
Peterborough 2016/17 
business plan.

Cabinet 26 
September 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Steve Bowyer
Chief Executive 
Opportunity 
Peterborough
Tel: 01733 317489
Steve.bowyer@opportu
nitypeterborough.co.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

61



16

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

3. Peterborough City 
Council Efficiency 
Strategy
For Cabinet to approve 
the Peterborough City 
Council Efficiency 
Strategy.

Cabinet 26 
September 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Katie Penfold
Budget Planning and 
Reporting Manager
Tel: 01733 384658
Katie.penfold@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

4. Request for Public 
Consultation for 
Public Space 
Protection Orders – 
To authorise the 
commencement of 
public consultation for 
public space protection 
orders.

Councillor Irene 
Walsh
Cabinet Member 
for Communities 
and 
Environment 
Capital

September 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Police, Fire 
Service, internal 
PCC 
departments.

Laura Kelsey
Anti-Social Behaviour 
Co-ordinator
Tel: 01733 453563
Larua.kelsey@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

5. Food Safety Service 
Plan – To approve the 
service plan.

Councillor Irene 
Walsh
Cabinet Member 
for Communities 
and 
Environment 
Capital

September 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Peter Gell
Head of Regulatory 
Services
Tel: 01733 453419
Peter.gell@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

62



17

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

6. Transforming Care 
Plan – To approve the 
Plan which has been 
produced by the 
Transforming Care 
Partnership and as 
required by DOH by 
July 2016.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health

September 
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Nigel Harvey-Whitten
Interim Head of Mental 
Health and Learning 
Disability 
Commissioning
Tel: 01733 452474
Nigel.harvey-
whitten@peterborough.
gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

7. Child Poverty 
Strategy
To approve the Child 
Poverty Strategy.

Cabinet 26 
September 
2016

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Consultation to 
take place in 
June 2016 with 
voluntary and 
community sector 
partners.

Ian Phillips
Social Inclusion 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863849
Ian.phillips@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

8. To Adopt the 
Highway Asset 
Management Policy 
and Strategy
To approve the 
adoption of the 
Highway Asset 
Management Policy 
and Strategy.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

September 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Lewis Banks, Principal 
Transport Planning 
Officer
Tel: 01733 317465 
Lewis.banks@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

63



18

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

9. Empty Homes 
Strategy – To approve 
the Empty Homes 
Strategy.

Councillor Irene 
Walsh
Cabinet Member 
for Communities 
and 
Environment 
Capital

September 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Belinda Child
Head of Housing and 
Health Improvement
Tel: 01733 863769
Belinda.child@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

10. Vivacity Funding –
To fund Vivacity £1278
until March 2016 (via
DWP grant funding) to
provide digital support 
for
UC claimants to make
benefit claims online at
Central Library.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet
Member for
Resources

September
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ian Phillips
Social Inclusion 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863849
Ian.phillips@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

11. Vivacity Premier 
Fitness Invest to Save 
Scheme - 
To authorise 
investment in 
developing Vivacity 
Premier Fitness on an 
invest to save basis

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

September
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

John Harrison
Corporate Director 
Resources
Tel: 01733 452520
John.harrison@peterbo
rouh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person (including the 
authority holding that 
information).

64



19

DIRECTORATE RESPONSIBILITIES

RESOURCES DEPARTMENT Corporate Director's Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
City Services and Communications (Markets and Street Trading, City Centre Management including Events, Regulatory Services, Parking Services, Vivacity Contract, CCTV 
and Out of Hours Calls, Marketing and Communications, Tourism and Bus Station, Resilience)
Strategic Finance
Internal Audit
Schools Infrastructure (Assets and School Place Planning)
Waste and Energy
Strategic Client Services (Enterprise Peterborough / Vivacity / SERCO including Customer Services, ICT and Business Support)

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENT Corporate Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB
Adult Services and Communities (Adult Social Care Operations, Adult Social Care and Quality Assurance, Adult Social Care Commissioning, Early Help – Adults, Children and 
Families, Housing and Health Improvement, Community and Safety Services, Offender Services)
Children’s Services and Safeguarding (Children’s Social Care Operations, Children’s Social Care Quality Assurance, Safeguarding Boards – Adults and Children’s, Child 
Health, Clare Lodge (Operations), Access to Resources)
Education, People Resources and Corporate Property (Special Educational Needs and Inclusion, School Improvement, City College Peterborough, Pupil Referral Units, 
Schools Infrastructure)
Business Management and Commercial Operations (Commissioning, Recruitment and Retention, Clare Lodge (Commercial), Early Years and Quality Improvement)

GOVERNANCE DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Legal and Democratic Services 
Human Resources (Business Relations, HR Policy and Rewards, Training and Development, Occupational Health and Workforce Development)
Performance and Information (Performance Management, Information Governance, Systems Support Team, Coroner’s Office, Freedom of Information)

GROWTH AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT Corporate Director’s Office Stuart House, St Johns Street, Peterborough, PE1 5DD
Development and Construction (Development Management, Planning Compliance, Building Control)
Sustainable Growth Strategy (Strategic Planning, Housing Strategy and Affordable Housing, Climate Change and Environment Capital, Natural and Built Environment)
Opportunity Peterborough
Peterborough Highway Services (Network Management, Highways Maintenance, Street Naming and Numbering, Street Lighting, Design and Adoption of Roads, Drainage and 
Flood Risk Management, Transport Policy and Sustainable Transport, Public Transport)
Corporate Property

PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Health Protection, Health Improvements, Healthcare Public Health.

65



AB

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL’S CABINET 
MEMBERS WOULD LIKE TO HEAR FROM YOU

The Leader of Peterborough City Council is offering everyone a chance to comment, or raise queries 
on the decisions highlighted on the Council’s Forward Plan.

Your comments and queries can be submitted to the Council’s Governance Team using the form 
overleaf, or alternatively by telephone or email.  The Governance team will then liaise with the 
appropriate Cabinet Member and ensure that you receive a response.  Members of the Cabinet, 
together with their areas of responsibility, are listed below:

    Councillor Holdich      Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and   

University 

   Councillor Fitzgerald        Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Integrated Adult Social Care 

and Health

Councillor Elsey

Councillor Goodwin

Councillor Hiller

Cabinet Member for Waste and Street Scene

Cabinet Member for City Centre Management, Culture and Tourism

Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and Economic 

Development

Councillor Lamb

Councillor Smith

Councillor Seaton

Councillor Walsh

Cabinet Member for Public Health

Cabinet Member for Children’s Services

Cabinet Member for Resources

Cabinet Member for Communities and Environment Capital

66



SUBMIT YOUR COMMENTS OR QUERIES TO 
PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL’S CABINET

Your comment or query: 

Who would you like to respond? (if left blank your comments will be referred to the relevant 
Cabinet Member)

How can we contact you with a response?  
(please include a telephone number, postal and/or e-mail address)

Name     ……………………………………………………………………….

Address ……………………………………………………………………….

  ……………………………………………………………………….

Tel:        ….…………………………………………………….....................

Email:    ……………………………………………………………………….

67



68



      Updated:   5 SEPTEMBER 2016

SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES
DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17

Meeting Date Item Indicative 
Timings

Comments

PSHFT – PUBLIC Consultation & Hinchingbrooke (Merger)
(Not formal consultation but it is engagement)

CCG && PSHFT to present findings/engagement feedback re 
proposals and discuss any potential impact on clinical services
Contact Officer: Jessica Bawden/Stephen Graves
JSNA Public Health Annual Report
PH to highlight key priorities for the city

Contact Officer:  Liz Robin
Forward Plan of Executive Decisions
That the Commission identifies any relevant items for inclusion 
within their work programme which is relevant to the remit of this 
Commission.

Contact Officer: Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services 
Officer

19 JULY 2016
Draft report 27 June

Final report 7 July

Review of 2015/16 and Work Programme 2016/17

To review the work undertaken during 2016/17 and to consider the 
work programme of the Committee.

Contact Officer: Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services 
Officer

15 SEPTEMBER 
2016

Transformation of Child Health and Wellbeing

Contact Officer:  Lee Miller

69



      Updated:   5 SEPTEMBER 2016

Meeting Date Item Indicative 
Timings

Comments

roposal to Form a Joint Committee to Scrutinise The Proposed 
Merger of Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust and Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS 
Foundation Trust

Contact Officer: Philippa Turvey

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions
That the Commission identifies any relevant items for inclusion 
within their work programme which is relevant to the remit of this 
Commission.

Draft Report 26 Aug

Final Report 5 Sept

Work Programme 2016/2017
To consider the Work Programme for 2016/2017.

Minor Injuries & Illness Unit (Options for Relocation)

Contact Officer: Jessica Bawden  

Integrated Urgent Care with Adult Social care
Following Due Diligence proposal to Scrutiny

Contact Officer: Adrian Chapman/Cath Mitchell

15 NOVEMBER 
2016
Draft report 24 Oct

Final report 3 Nov

Proposed Model for Day Services

Contact Officer: Oliver Hayward

70



      Updated:   5 SEPTEMBER 2016

Meeting Date Item Indicative 
Timings

Comments

Adult Social Care 
Performance Dashboard inc Audit
Contact Officer: Debbie McQuade  
Primary Care – 5 Year Forward Plan including issues for NHS 
England
Workforce challenges re G.P.s

Contact Officer:  Jessica Bawden
Uniting Care Review/Outcomes
Final report

Contact Officer: Jessica Bawden 

Sustainability & Transformation Plan
Focus on service Redesign that the Public will be interested in

Contact Officer:  Cath Mitchell

Vertical Integration
Tier 1, 2 & 3

Contact Officer:  Debbie McQuade/Deborah Cohen

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions
That the Commission identifies any relevant items for inclusion 
within their work programme which is relevant to the remit of this 

71



      Updated:   5 SEPTEMBER 2016

Meeting Date Item Indicative 
Timings

Comments

Commission.

Work Programme 2016/2017
To consider the Work Programme for 2016/2017.

16 November 2016
(Joint Meeting of 
the Scrutiny 
Committees and 
Commissions) 

Budget 2017/18 and Medium Term Financial Strategy to 2026/27 
Phase One
To scrutinise the Executive’s proposals for the Budget 2017/18 and 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2026/27.

Contact Officer:  John Harrison/Steven Pilsworth 
1.

10 January 2017
Draft report 9 Dec

Final report 21 Dec

72



      Updated:   5 SEPTEMBER 2016

Meeting Date Item Indicative 
Timings

Comments

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions
That the Commission identifies any relevant items for inclusion 
within their work programme which is relevant to the remit of this 
Commission.

Work Programme 2016/2017
To consider the Work Programme for 2016/2017.

(Joint Meeting of 
the Scrutiny 
Committees and 
Commissions)
8 February 2017

Budget 2017/18 and Medium Term Financial Strategy to 2026/27 
Phase Two
To scrutinise the Executive’s proposals for the Budget 2017/18 and 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2026/27.

1. Contact Officer:  John Harrison/Steven Pilsworth

14 March 2017
Draft report 

20 Feb

Final report

2 March

73



      Updated:   5 SEPTEMBER 2016

Meeting Date Item Indicative 
Timings

Comments

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions
That the Commission identifies any relevant items for inclusion 
within their work programme which is relevant to the remit of this 
Commission.

74



      Updated:   5 SEPTEMBER 2016

Possible Items for Future Meetings Contact Officer

Healthy Child Programme (0-19/Commissioning for Children’s Services)

Joint Scrutiny with Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities
Oliver Hayward

Portfolio Progress Report from Cabinet Member for Integrated Adult Social Care and Health 

Portfolio Progress Report from Cabinet Member for Public Health

Communications Plan for New GP Out of Hours / 111 Service Jessica Bawden

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report Jessica Bawden

Adult Social Care and Public Health – 2014/15 Performance Overview Report

Cambridgeshire And Peterborough Health And Care System Transformation Programme

Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust – General Overview Of Trust Activity

Priorities Agreed by the Commission:

 Dementia, including prevention via mental and physical stimulation;
 Coronary heart disease;
 Loneliness and isolation, particularly in the elderly;
 Obesity; and
 Health inequality.

75



T
his page is intentionally left blank

76


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of Meeting Held on 19 July 2016
	5. Transformation of Child Health and Wellbeing
	5. Appendix A - Transformation of Child Health and Wellbeing

	6. Proposal to Form a Joint Committee to Scrutinise The Proposed Merger of Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Foundation Trust
	6. Joint Committee Proposal - Appendix A
	6. Joint Committee Proposal - Appendix B
	6. Joint Committee Proposal - Appendix C

	7. Forward Plan of Executive  Decisions
	7. Appendix 1 - Forward Plan of Executive Decisions Cover Report - 160915 - SCHI

	8. Work Programme



